
ARC Regional Transportation Electrification Plan 
Proposal Questions & Responses- November 28, 2022 

 

Q Regarding the limit of a maximum of 25 pages, we understand that the cover 
sheet, end sheet and introductory letter do not count toward the 25 pages limit. 
Can you please confirm that these items do not count toward the 25 pages: 
Exhibits; DBE forms; Tabs. 

A Per the RFP, the cover sheet, end sheet, and introductory letters do not count towards 
the 25-page limit. Exhibits, DBE forms, and tabs shall also not count against the 
maximum 25-page count. 

Q Exhibit B (Proposed Project Budget (CY 2023)) and Exhibit B-2 (Proposed Project 
Budget – Rates & Hours Only (CY 2024)) of the RFP requests rates separated 
into direct labor, overhead cost, other direct costs, and profit. Our firm does not 
use this method of calculating rates for clients and we do not have a way to 
calculate these amounts for our response to this RFP – we use fully-loaded rates 
instead which is the standard practice for many consultants.  
 
For this RFP response, would ARC be willing to accept fully-loaded rates in 
Exhibit B and B-2? Our response would continue to use the “Subcontracts” and 
“Travel” categories to show detail for these amounts, and we would continue to 
show estimated hours, rate/hour, and total estimated cost, but instead use fully-
loaded rates. If possible, please advise as soon as you are able as this is a key 
consideration for our team in responding to this RFP.  

A In order for the evaluation committee to consider the budget in the evaluation, RFP 
responses must include the Exhibit B and B-2 as the exhibit is presented in the RFP. 

Q Does the ARC have an inventory of the current EV infrastructure in the region or 
any information on types, locations and ownership of chargers that currently 
exist in the area? 

A No, ARC does not currently own or maintain any inventory relating to EV infrastructure. 

Q We noticed that there is a sample contract in the RFP provided by the ARC. Do 
we need to submit any acceptance or exceptions to this contract in Phase 1 of 
this submittal? 

A No, the contract boilerplate is only for informational purposes.  

Q RFP states: “Description of experience on similar projects including a list of at 
least 3 references within the past 5 years, with current contact information.” 
Does this mean we need to provide current contact info for all similar project 
experience or just the ones we are using as references? 



A Current contact information must be provided for at least three references but not for 
all project experience provided.  

Q Stakeholder Engagement Plan: RFP scope says this is part of Task 1 in that 
task's narrative, but it also has it as a deliverable in Task 2. Do you want us to 
provide this information in Task 1 and 2? 

A No, the Stakeholder Engagement Plan is only required as a deliverable for Task 2. 

Q In the RFP, item #9 – “proposed work plan and schedule” – says to provide an 
estimated lump sum cost for each task identified. This is also to be provided in 
Exhibit B-1: Proposed Project Budget by Task, do you want this information 
shown in both places or only in Exhibit B-1? 

A Only in Exhibit B-1. 

Q The RFP states: covers, end sheets, and an introductory letter shall not count 
against the page maximums. Does this mean Exhibits B, B-1, B-2, C, and D count 
towards the total page limit? 

A See question #1. 

Q Task 5 states: consultant shall provide a methodology or analytical tool for ARC 
to continue to prioritize EVCI locations in the future. It also mentions in Task 6 to 
provide EVCI prioritization and analytical tool as a task deliverable. Does this 
tool need to be mentioned in both tasks 5 and 6? 

A The tool can be associated with either Task 5 or Task 6. 

Q Due to the upcoming holiday season, would ARC consider extending the 
deadline for the RFP one week to December 19, 2022? This would allow our team 
to develop the best possible proposal for consideration, considering inherent 
challenges with staffing over this time period.  

A No. 

Q The RFP states that ARC can only recognize DBE certifications issued by the 
Metropolitan Atlanta Rapid Transit Authority and the Georgia Department of 
Transportation. Can a DBE that is currently seeking DBE certification from 
MARTA and GDOT be named as a DBE in the DBE Utilization Plan?  

A Yes, DBE certification can be provided at a later date.  

Q Will there be an opportunity to negotiate terms of the boilerplate contract 
language (Exhibit E) after the project is awarded? 

A Yes. 



Q Is the detailed breakdown of the proposed budget and task breakdown included 
in the 25-page limit?  

A Exhibits B and B-1 are not included in the 25-page limit. 

Q The RFP indicates that ARC will issue a contract or contracts in early 2023. Does 
ARC anticipate making one award or multiple awards under this opportunity?  

A ARC reserves the right to award one contract or multiple contracts under this 
opportunity.  

Q Task 3 activities include “public fleet inventory and assessment” – can ARC 
provide additional information on the type of assessment that is expected? 
Assuming that this activity will be conducted for all twenty counties noted, does 
ARC have an estimate of how many vehicles will be included in the assessment? 
And should we assume that the data is readily available and will be provided in 
an editable format?  

A This was an illustrative task identified in the Federal NEVI Guidance.  At this time, ARC 
does not have any additional guidance on the type of assessment to conduct.  

Q Is it possible to remove the requirement to submit a hard copy of the proposal? 

A No. 

Q Will you accept electronic signature by [our firm]? 

A Yes. 

Q Will you expect electronic signature of the authorized authority for the notary 
seal.  

A Yes. 

Q Can you share more information regarding this "ARC does not envision RTEP 
stakeholder engagement as an isolated effort, but rather as part of a bigger, 
more integrated community engagement strategy that is currently in 
development." How should we approach creating a budget estimate for the 
stakeholder engagement plan based on this?  

A The proposal should identify a budget that represents the resources necessary to carry 
out its proposed Stakeholder Engagement Plan in Task 2. The proposal does not need 
to account for resources associated with other agency community engagement 
strategies. 

Q Under public engagement, will the consultant be developing the content for the 
web page and working with ARC staff to populate the web page or are you 
looking for a standalone website? 



A The consultant will be required to develop the content for the web page, which will be 
hosted on ARC’s web domain. 

Q Can ARC share a list of DBE firms who are currently or have recently been 
engaged with LRTP, TIP to other ARC activities that may allow for us to build on 
existing information/relationships relative to community engagement? 

A It is recommended to review the UCP Directory which can be found on GDOT’s 
website: https://www.dot.ga.gov/GDOT/Pages/DBE.aspx  

Q The public facing website referenced in the scope of the RFP – is this to be a 
standalone website or part of ARC’s current website?  

A The consultant will be required to develop the content for the web page, which will be 
hosted on ARC’s web domain. 

Q Can you please confirm if all the forms (Exhibits B, B-1, B-2, C, and D etc.) are 
excluded from page count limit? Can you also please confirm which forms need 
to be completed and returned by all subconsultants and which forms are only for 
the prime firm? 

A Per the RFP, the cover sheet, end sheet, and introductory letters do not count towards 
the 25-page limit. Exhibits, DBE forms, and tabs shall also not count against the 
maximum 25-page count. The forms only need to be completed by the prime for the 
proposal.  

Q Is a Table of Contents to be included in the proposal and would it count toward 
the page count limit? 

A A table of contents is not required for the proposal but will count toward the 25-page 
limit.  

Q Page 3 of the RFP references two components of work with a 25-page limit for 
response. Can you please clarify what the two components of work are and does 
the 25-page limit cover both components or is it 25 pages for each for a total of 
50 pages? 

A Per the RFP, the cover sheet, end sheet, and introductory letters do not count towards 
the 25-page limit. Exhibits, DBE forms, and tabs shall also not count against the 
maximum 25-page count. The proposal is not to exceed 25 pages total.  

Q Should any tab or divider sheets be included between any sections of the 
proposal, and would they count towards the page count limit? 

A Per the RFP, the cover sheet, end sheet, and introductory letters do not count towards 
the 25-page limit. Exhibits, DBE forms, and tabs shall also not count against the 
maximum 25-page count.  

https://www.dot.ga.gov/GDOT/Pages/DBE.aspx


Q Do the minimum of three requested references and project examples count as 
forms, and should they be included or excluded from the 25-page count limit? 

A They are not excluded from the 25-page count limit. 

Q Can proposals be hand delivered or do they need to be delivered by a mail 
service? 

A They can be hand delivered.  

Q Page 3 of the RFP states that “Covers, end sheets and an introductory letter 
shall not count against these [page] maximums.” Are Exhibit B and the contract 
forms considered “end sheets,” and thus excluded from the page count?  

A Per the RFP, the cover sheet, end sheet, and introductory letters do not count towards 
the 25-page limit. Exhibits, DBE forms, and tabs shall also not count against the 
maximum 25-page count.  

Q Is font size smaller than 10 pt. acceptable in graphics, charts, or other figures?  

A Yes.  

Q Is it acceptable to include active web links in the PDF file?  

A Yes.  

Q In regard to the digital format of the proposal—would you prefer it to be 
submitted by email or saved on a USB drive and submitted with the hard copy of 
the proposal? 

A Either are acceptable.   

Q If Phase 2 continues into the following year, can the rates we provide in our 
submittal be updated after the fact to reflect 2024? 

A Additional scope and budget will be reflected through an amendment process where 
the budget will be negotiated based on the rates submitted for CY 2024 in the exhibit.  

Q Does ARC have certain internal platforms (e.g., public/stakeholder engagement 
platforms)? If so, what are those platforms and does ARC expect the consultants 
to use those engagement platforms?  

A At present, ARC does not have a preferred engagement platform. We will be updating 
our Transportation Community Engagement Plan and will be exploring new digital 
engagement tools as part of that project.  

Q Is an approach write-up pertaining to the optional scope of services (“Year Two”) 
expected to be included in the proposal? 

A No. 


